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CITY OF TORRANCE 
3031 Torrance Blvd. 
Torrance, CA  90503 

 

RFQ for Architectural Design Services of Prefabricated Metal Storage Building at Transit 

 
ADDENDUM # 2- Issued 11/3/20 

 

THE FOLLOWING CHANGES ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED INTO AND MADE A MANDATORY 
PART OF SUBJECT RFQ:   
 
CLARIFY:  The Quotation Due Date has been changed to Monday, November 30, 2020 by 3:00 PM 
to the email of Nina Schroeder at NSchroeder@TorranceCa.Gov.  NO FAXED QUOTATIONS 
EXCEPTED 
 
CLARIFY:  Please see the attached brochure (page 5) for the type of bus lift the City would like to 
have installed inside the prefabricated metal storage building. 
 
Below are questions raised during the RFQ preparation period with answers in bold: 
 

1. The RFQ calls for “complete biddable and constructible documents of a prefabricated metal 
storage building”. We see two possible options for project delivery methods: 

a. Shall the design team determine the basic building size, shape, and placement which will 
serve as the guide for obtaining design-build bids from metal building contractors?  

 
b. Shall the design team include a prefabricated building manufacturer who will include the 

full constructible design of the metal building in their scope? 
 
The design team shall include a prefabricated building manufacturer who will include the full 
constructible design of the metal building. The contractor will get the engineered drawings, not 
the architect. 
 
So, the basic question is: What will the architectural design team and their engineering consultants be 
responsible for in terms of providing plans for the building, and what will the prefabricated metal 
building vendor/manufacturer be responsible for? 
 
Architectural design team should be responsible for layout of building and prefab building 
vendor should be responsible for full constructible design and current building codes. 
 

2. Will a survey in AutoCAD or Revit format including topography and utilities serving the area of 
work be provided for the use of the design team? 

 
City will provide topography and utilities survey in a separate addendum. 
 

3. Shall we include in the mechanical scope, a design for ventilation and exhaust that anticipates 
the future use of vehicle maintenance? 
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Yes, include in the mechanical scope a design for ventilation and exhaust that anticipates the 
future use of vehicle maintenance. 
 

4. Shall we include in the plumbing scope at least one floor drain and clarifier/interceptor 
connected to the sewer system as needed for future vehicle maintenance work?  

 
Yes, include in the plumbing scope at least one floor drain and clarifier/interceptor connected 
to the sewer system as needed for future vehicle maintenance work. 

 
5. Will the sprinkler design (if required) be design-build by the general contractor?  

 
Yes, sprinkler contractor will submit separate design build quote. 
 

6. Shall we include in our scope, the structural design for a slab and/or foundation that can accept 
a bus lift in the future?  

Yes, include in your scope the structural design for a slab and/or foundation that can accept a 
bus lift in the future. The slab would be need to be designed to accommodate the concentrated 
loads for the moveable bus lift. 
 

7. Shall we include in our scope, the electrical design for conduits, compressed air and any other 
systems to support vehicle maintenance (including the bus lift) in the future? If other systems, 
please provide which ones and their requirements.  

 
No, but main electrical panel should be sized for future expansion. Minimum incoming 480v 3 
phase 125amp and 208/120v 3 phase 250amp for service. 
 

8. Are the P.O. Terms & Conditions attached to the RFQ the “consulting contract” that will be used 
as referred to under Other, Item 3 (on page 4), or is there an additional agreement that will 
need to be agreed upon? 

 
This work would be accomplished by a Purchase Order. No additional agreement required. 
 

9. What is the estimated construction schedule? 
 
Construction is estimated to take 180 days (6 months) 
 

10. What is the estimated construction budget? 
 
Construction budget is $150,000 - $180,000.   
 
 

11. Could we get as built drawings of the parking lot & area around the proposed building site 
during the proposal phase? Especially the site slope to & including the catch basin for the civil 
engineer to estimate his fee.  

 
No As-Built drawings available to provide.  
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12. The RFQ is not clear regarding Construction Support Services.  Under “Scope of Work” page 3, 
it says that Construction site support will be accomplished via a separate contract when the 
construction contract is awarded.  Later on, under General Requirements, Item D : 
"Construction Support Services”  lists all the services required for construction such as 
attendance at meetings, RFI’s, Submittals, Punchlist, etc.   Are Construction Support Services 
to be included in our proposal now to be contracted at a later date OR left out entirely for 
another proposal at a later date?  

 
Construction support services, engineers estimate, document reproduction is to be included in 
the price proposal total, but with using separate line items to show the items separately. 
 

13. Please clarify if LID Stormwater Management will be required for this project.  The building will 
be about 3200 sf. Is it above or below the cutoff point for LID requirements?  If required, the 
cost will be significant in terms of design time, design fee & construction budget.  

 
Per City Ordinance 3793 Chapter 11 Low Impact Development Strategies for Development and 
Redevelopment, LID Storm water Management is not required for this project as the project 
square footage is 3,200. Per the ordinance the requirement for LID storm water is for projects 
that cover 5,000 square feet or more. 
 

14. Please clarify that neither the City nor the Architect will chose the actual pre-engineered metal 
building fabricator & that it will be chosen by the contractor as a part of his bid.  The architect 
will provide drawings for site & building layout, required utilities & basic code compliance for the 
building site.  The pre-engineered building fabricator, as a sub-contractor to the general 
contractor, will provide structural design for the metal building & secure the building permit for 
this portion of the work.  

 
The design team shall include a prefabricated building manufacturer who will include the full 
constructible design of the metal building. The contractor will get the engineered drawings, not 
the architect. Architectural design team should be responsible for layout of building and prefab 
building vendor should be responsible for full constructible design and current building codes. 
The City will review for permit and the actual building will be engineered by the fabricator.  
 

15. Please confirm anticipated start date of design work.  
 
The anticipated start date of design work is January 2, 2021. 
 

16. Please confirm the “Design work including plan check approval” completion date of January 29, 
2021. 

 
Design work including plan check approval must be accomplished by June 30, 2021. 
 
 

17. Please confirm anticipated length of time for plan check and approval by City Council.  
 
Typically it takes 4 weeks for the City Council process, and 4 weeks for plan check approval. 
 

18. Please confirm anticipated construction start date. 
 
Anticipated construction start would be November 2021. 
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19. Please confirm anticipated approximately 120 days of construction. 
 
Construction is estimated to take 180 days (6 months). 
 

20. Does architect’s proposal needs to include time for presentations or attendance at City Council 
for project approval? 

 
No the architect is not required to attend or present at City Council and should not include that 
time in the proposal. 
 

21. Does architect’s proposal need to include renderings for presentation to City Council?  
 
No the architect is not required to present at City Council and should not include City Council 
presentations in the proposal. 
 

22. Please confirm if a complete site survey will be provided or if Civil Engineer needs to include in 
proposal. 

 
The City will provide the site survey. 
 

23. Please confirm whether existing drawings for underground utility pipes will be available for 
review for coordination with the new footing and slab-on-grade designs. 

 
Existing drawings for underground utility pipes will be available for review for coordination 
with the new footing and slab-on-grade designs. Consultant to contact dig alert. 
 

24. Please confirm that for item #2 (Engineer’s Estimate), you are looking for a fee for a Cost 
Estimator to do (1) one CSI formatted cost estimate that will be submitted with Completed Plans 
for review by City Staff. 

 
City is providing a topography and utilities survey. No need for a Civil Engineer to do the same. 
 
Please return this addendum with your quotation.  
Failure to acknowledge addenda and submit it with  
your quotation may render the quotation non-responsive  
and cause it to be rejected.  I hereby acknowledge  
receipt of this addendum. 
 
       

   ______________________________ 
         Name of Company 
 
 
 
                                                         ______________________________ 
          Address 
 
 
 
         ______________________________ 
          City         State             Zip Code 
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